
Meeting of:  Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date: Thursday, 24th January, 2019
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside - Number One 
Riverside

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 3 - 7

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
21st November 2018. 

6.  HIGHWAYS STUDY GROUP 

To consider a report of the Highways Study Group (to be circulated) 

Public Document Pack



7.  TOWN CENTRE ENFORCEMENT 

Director of Neighbourhoods to report 

8.  ECONOMY DIRECTORATE PLANS 2018-19: QUARTER 3 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

8 - 31

Quarter 3 Performance update – Economy Directorate 

9.  NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE PLAN 2018-19: QUARTER 3 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

32 - 43

Quarter 3 Performance Update – Neighbourhoods Directorate 

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Members
Councillor Jacqueline Beswick Councillor Phil Burke
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Andy Kelly Councillor Daniel Meredith
Councillor Ann Stott JP Councillor June West
Councillor Peter Williams Councillor Peter Winkler

For more information about this meeting, please contact: 
Alison James
Governance and Committee Services, 
Floor 2, Number One Riverside 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone: 01706 924711
e-mail: Alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:Alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk


COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 21st November 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Meredith (in the Chair); Councillors Hartley, Kelly, 
Stott, West, Peter Williams and Winkler. 

OFFICERS:  M. Dalzell, A. Storey, H. Bellis (Neighbourhoods Directorate), 
D. Cook, P. Moore (Economy Directorate) and P. Thompson (Resources 
Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Superintendent J. P. Ruffle (Greater Manchester 
Police) and one member of the public.

APOLOGIES
15 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Beswick, Burke 
and Susan Emmott. 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
16 Councillor Kelly declared a personal interest in minute 22, below – 
Economy Directorate Plans 218/19: Quarter 2 Performance Update - insofar 
as the report attached thereto referred to funding bids made to the Heritage 
Lottery Fund.  

MINUTES
17 Resolved: That the Minutes of the meeting of the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held 27th 
September 2018 be approved and signed by the Chair, as a correct record.

ROCHDALE SAFER COMMUNITIES PARTNERSHIP UPDATE
18 The Committee received a joint presentation from the Director of 
Neighbourhoods (Head of Neighbourhood Services) and Greater Manchester 
Police which updated Members on the work of the Rochdale Borough Safer 
Communities Partnership. It was a statutory duty of a local authority to have a 
Community Safety Partnership (CSP) - Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder 
Act 1998 dictated that a responsible authority must consider the implication on 
crime and disorder on all of their day to day activities.

A part of the CSP included the work of the Town Centre Wardens who had 
responsibility for enforcing the Public Space Protection Orders that were 
currently in force in Rochdale’s designated town centre area and a new 
responsibility included responsibility for the co-ordination of domestic abuse.

A recently undertaken survey of residents in the Borough found that the 
majority of people think that the way Rochdale Council work together with the 
police and other groups had stayed the same. Feeling safe when walking the 
streets in the town centre produced some mixed views on stayed the same 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



and got worse but most people feel safe in their neighbourhood during both 
the day and at night. The issues that people thought had got worse over the 
last three years included: Drug dealing and substance misuse; Dangerous 
driving; Theft – including from homes and sheds and other theft; Vehicle 
crime; anti-social behaviour and Cybercrime.

The current Community Safety Plan expired at the end of 2018. It was 
deemed that the current plan was not ‘fit for purpose’ due to changes in threat, 
risk and harm. There had in the Plan been no reference to domestic abuse 
and included various outdated performance measures. Thus there were 
requirements for a new strategic assessment including a restructure of the 
Council’s Community Safety function. The next steps and key milestones for 
the Safer Communities Partnership included consultation and consideration of 
the Greater Manchester Police and Crime Plan Outcomes Framework that 
was due to be undertaken in November and December 2018. The aims and 
objectives for the Sub-Groups were due to be completed by February 2019, 
with measures of success and performance framework to be agreed in March 
2019. These various issues would feed into the refreshed Community Safety 
Plan that was due to be drafted and submitted to the Rochdale Safer 
Communities Partnership Board for approval at its meeting on 23rd April 2019.

Resolved: 
1. The report be noted.
2. The Director of Neighbourhoods be requested to submit a detailed 

report to the next meeting of the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, on 24th January 2019, 
reviewing and assessing the impact of the recently introduced Public 
Space Protection Orders in Rochdale’s town centre.    

DISCRETIONARY CRISIS FUND AND LOCAL WELFARE PROVISION 6 
MONTH REPORT
19 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
that outlined the first six months provision of the Discretionary Crisis Fund 
(DCF); detailing applications to the scheme, the reasons why and what 
awards were made. The report also details the successes of the community 
based projects funded by the Local Welfare Provision budget. Access to the 
Rochdale and Heywood Food Banks is also included in the report.

The DCF provided ‘white goods’ and basic furniture in support of those setting 
up home when resettling from temporary accommodation; for example when 
fleeing domestic abuse or leaving temporary homelessness accommodation. 
The Fund also provides a mechanism to make small crisis awards for those 
who find themselves in financial difficulty; for example, to provide emergency 
household fuel, or for an emergency clothes allowance

The local welfare provision also funds, alongside the DCF, small contributions 
to a number of Food Banks within the borough and grant funds a number of 
community based projects.

Page 4



In considering the report a Member sought information as to the 
consequences arising from the rollout of Universal Credit, which had led to an 
increase in the demand for white goods (fridges, freezers etc).

The Committee were informed that the contract for the administration of the 
DCF was due expire on 31st March 2019 and the Housing Officer undertook to 
meet with Members of the Committee, outside of the Committee’s formal 
structures to discuss issues relating to this contract.

Members asked about the provision of services provided by the foodbanks 
that were located in Middleton and sought information as to the provision of 
funding for the two foodbanks.

Resolved:
1. The report be noted
2. The Housing officer make arrangements to liaise with the Chair of the 

Committee regarding proposal for the renewal of the contract for the 
administration of the Discretionary Crisis Fund.     

3. The Housing officer be requested to make contact with the two 
foodbanks that are located in Middleton regarding their access to 
funding.

ECONOMY DIRECTORATE PLANS 2018-19: QUARTER 2 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE
20 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Economy which 
advised of the progress at the end of Quarter 2 (30th September 2018) 
towards the achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate 
Plan 2018/19.

The Director updated the Committee with regard to Rochdale Market. The 
Council had decided to not to renew the licence that had been granted to 
market operators Market Asset Management, Quarterbridge, were removed 
from the market leaving Rochdale Borough Council and Rochdale 
Development Agency running the market for the foreseeable future. A new 
indoor Market Hall head opened for business on Monday, 12h November 
2018 including a café and four stalls. However members of the Committee 
expressed their dissatisfaction with the current condition of the outdoor market 
noting that this still needed some work to improve the situation and the 
Committee discussed possible future arrangements for Markets across the 
Borough in some detail, seeking clarification as to the costs to the Council in 
respect of managing Rochdale Market and developments at Middleton 
Market. 

Members of the Committee noted that the NISA store that had recently 
opened in Rochdale town centre had closed without notice. The Director of 
Economy undertook to investigate the reasons behind the closure of the store 
and to notify Members of the Committee accordingly.

Page 5



A Member of the Committee sought clarification on the proposed residential 
strategy for Rochdale town centre and was advised that a written update 
would be provided to Members of the Committee.

Resolved:
1. The report be noted
2. The Director of Economy be requested to investigate the reasons 

behind the closure of the NISA store in Rochdale town centre and to 
notify Members of the Committee of those reasons accordingly

3. The Director of Economy be requested to write to Members of the 
Committee updating Members on the proposed residential strategy for 
Rochdale town centre

NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE PLAN 2018-19: QUARTER 2 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE
21 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which advised of the progress at the end of Quarter 2 (30th September 2018) 
towards the achievement of the targets contained in the Neighbourhoods 
Directorate Plan 2018/19.

In considering the report a Member requested an update on action point 
N18017 (Increase Enforcement Activity), in relation to injunctions against 
Travellers in the Borough. The Director undertook to provide a written answer 
to Members of the Committee in relation to this matter.  

A Member requested an update on proposals detailed in the report regarding 
the delivery of the link road at junction 19. In this respect the Committee was 
advised that a report on this matter was due to be presented to the Council’s 
Cabinet in the near future.

Resolved:
1. The report be note;
2. The Director of Neighbourhoods be requested to write to Members of 

the Committee providing an update on enforcement action that had 
been taken against Travellers in the Borough.

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19
22 The Committee considered its Work Programme for 2018/19.  The 
Chair requested that a report updating Members on Community Centres in the 
Borough be presented to the next meeting on 24th January 2019. Members of 
the Committee expressed disappointment that the Director of Economy and 
the Director of Neighbourhoods were not in attendance at the meeting and 
requested that they attend the next meeting, to be held on 24th January 2019.

Resolved:
1. The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee.

Page 6



2. The Director of Neighbourhoods be requested to submit a report to the 
Committee’s next meeting, on 24th January 2019, reviewing the 
provision of community centres in the Borough.

3. The Director of Economy and the Director of Neighbourhoods be 
requested to attend the Committee’s next scheduled meeting on2 4th 
January 2019.

Page 7



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting MeetingDateLegal
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Regeneration, Business, 
Skills & Employment

Report Author Ben Jorgensen
Public/Private Document

Economy Directorate Plans 2018-19: Quarter 3 Performance Update

Executive Summary

1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 3 (1st October – 31st December 2018) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate 
Plan 2018-19

Recommendation

2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and 
the appendices.

Reason for Recommendation

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 

The Quarter 3 progress report for the Economy Directorate is attached at 
Appendix 1. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control 
Green: Action completed by the target date 
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple.

This year the directorate plans are formatted differently to include milestones 
for each directorate action. This enables O&S to monitor the work that must be 

Page 8

Agenda Item 8



3.5

completed, to support achievement of the action.

Appendix 2 provides information on the Q3 performance of Rochdale 
Development Agency.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Economy Directorate Plan 2018-19 Progress

Performance Overview

88.9% (8) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2018-19 are still 
ongoing.  One further action has passed the action deadline date and is yet to 
be completed. The chart below shows the overall performance of the 
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 3. 

The eight actions that are not fully complete but are within the action target 
date (Purple) relate to:
 Increase local employment.
 Attract inward investment and support business growth
 Promote and say yes to good development.
 Create vibrant Town Centres.
 Make the most of our built, natural and historic environment
 Maximise income for the Council.
 Capitalise on our investment in regional growth
 Deliver high quality and effective services.

Quarter 3 Highlights

During Quarter 3, a total of 98 jobs were created and 126 jobs safeguarded.  
Despite this, the Borough’s self-employment rate is the lowest in GM and the 
number of residents claiming out of work benefit increased slightly in line with 

Page 9



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

regional and national increases.  Over 77,000 ft2 of new commercial floor 
space was completed with RDA support and over £10.05m private sector 
investment secured across the Borough.  Two businesses relocated and 
expanded during Q3, making 9 in total during 2018/19 and the RDA assisted 
in the letting of the vacant Link 95 unit, Hareshill Road, Heywood.  

The Council’s programme to develop new employment space continues. 11 
new units are under development at Plot D, Kingsway Business Park, and are 
expected to be completed in April 2019. Agreements are already in place with 
several potential occupiers. Further schemes are in the design stage at 
Starkey Street, Heywood and a planning application submitted for the former 
Bradfern site, Oldham Road, Rochdale.  Construction of a 75,00ft2 unit for an 
occupier on Kingsway Plot F is also progressing well.

In Rochdale town centre, construction of the Rochdale Riverside scheme 
remains on programme with the opening of the site access to John Street. 
Piling works for the new M and S unit will complete in January 2019.  58 
apprenticeship weeks have been completed, and 40.2% of construction spend 
has been in Rochdale borough exceeding the target of 30%. The grant funded 
work to convert the upper floors of 1 Drake Street for residential use was 
completed and these units will go to market.  The works to create the new taxi 
rank on South Parade are complete and the rank will become operational in 
early 2019.   The Council acquired the Central Retail Park site with the 
intention to bring forward the vacant part of that site for residential 
development.  

Following the grant of planning permissions, the disposal of 3 Council owned 
brownfield sites at Roch St, Durham St and Entwistle Road to Countryside 
Properties was agreed in late December. In addition to a capital receipt, these 
3 sites will deliver over 170 homes with works due to commence on site in 
January 2019.  However, planning applications for housing on other brownfield 
sites such as British Vita, Middleton and Akzo Nobel in Littleborough did not 
come forward as expected reducing forecasted fee income projections in the 
quarter.  No progress was made with the building owner to bring forward 
alternative uses for the Warwick Mill, Middleton.  Appointment of a Design 
team for the Town Hall Square project took place with a formal announcement 
made in early 2019. Permission to start the Fire Service Museum project was 
granted by the Heritage Lottery Fund.  A funding bid to the GM Combined 
Authority for the re-use of the upper floors of the building was submitted.  
Working in partnership with The Environment Agency a scheme for the Phase 
1 River Roch flood alleviation scheme in Littleborough has been finalised with 
a planning application submitted in early 2019.  Works are expected to 
commence on site during 2020. 

The annual Rochdale Business Awards was successfully held in November 
with over 280 attendees from the local business community.  
 
Performance Issues

None

Page 10



4.9

Alternatives Considered

None

Costs and Budget Summary

5. None

Risk and Policy Implications

None6.

Consultation

7. Not required

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Appendix 1 -  Economy 
Directorate Plan 2018-19

Appendix 2 - RDA Performance 
Report

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, , 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 11



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  1  Of  5 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

19 July 2018 
 

  

         

   

E18001 Increase local employment.  31 March 2019   

During Q3 98 jobs were created and 126 jobs safeguarded as a result of the work of the Council and RDA. The next release of employment and 
unemployment rate data is due on the 22nd January. The number of borough residents claiming out of work benefit has increased slightly, an 
extra 25 residents between October and November, in line with regional and national increases. The over 50 years age group had the largest 
increase, +40 residents between October and November, and this is against the regional and national trend which is showing no change for this 
age group. The Start Smart programme which the Council is funding and matched with European Funding is on target to help create 24 new 
businesses by the end of January. Individual support and group sessions have covered topics such as Tax, social media, book keeping and 
business planning. Based on success in other areas of the UK, the council and local housing associations funded the Pop UP Business School to 
deliver 5 days of training. Following this event 20 women took part in a self-employment workshop at the Town Hall which was very well received 
and we have been able to offer 4 themed sessions based on the needs of the participants. The borough’s self-employment rate is the lowest in 
GM. On Rochdale Riverside, 58 apprenticeship weeks have been completed, and 40.2% of construction spend has been in Rochdale borough 
against a target of 30%. The target of 30% of labour being borough residents has been met. The Council programme to develop new 
employment space continues. 11 new units are under development at Plot D, Kingsway Business Park, and are expected to be completed in 
April 2019. Agreements are already in place with several potential occupiers. Further schemes are in the design stage at Starkey Street, 
Heywood and at the site at Oldham Road, Rochdale; a planning application has been submitted. 

08/01/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 E18001.A Increase the Borough employment rate to 68% by March 2019 31 March 2019   

 E18001.B Influence the number of people claiming out of work benefit through:  31 March 2019   

 E18001.C Attracting new businesses by developing Council units – minimum 5 
per annum 

31 March 2019   

 E18001.D Minimum 350 new jobs created through RDA support 31 March 2019   

 E18001.E Minimum 250 jobs safeguarded through RDA support 31 March 2019   

 E18001.F Support and monitor Wilmott Dixon in meeting economic outputs in 
the agreed Recruitment and Training Plan for Rochdale Riverside 

31 March 2019   

 E18001.G Minimum of 380 people accessing employment through Employment 
Links and Working Well contracts. 

31 March 2019   

 

 

  

 

E18002 Attract inward investment and support business growth  31 March 2019   

A total of 2 business relocated and expanded within the Borough during Q3, making 9 in total during 2018/19. During Q3 over £10.05m of private 
sector investment was secured and the RDA assisted in the letting of Link 95 unit, Hareshill Road, Heywood. 

08/01/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 E18002.A Support local business growth and promote inward investment 
through a targeted marketing campaign 

31 March 2019   

 E18002.B Co-deliver a portfolio of target companies across the Borough for an 
Account Management strategy for Local Businesses – target 50 
businesses 

31 March 2019   

 E18002.C Consult with 200 businesses per annum through Place Board 31 March 2019   

 

P
age 12



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  2  Of  5 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

19 July 2018 
 

  

         

Ambassadors scheme/Deliver minimum 4 events per annum 

 E18002.D £30m of private sector investment generated by assisted projects 31 March 2019   

 E18002.E Promote the Borough’s portfolio of competitive, high quality 
Business Parks and Industrial sites for development and/or 
refurbishment                           

31 March 2019   

 

  

 

E18003 Promote and say yes to good development.  31 March 2019   

Following the grant of planning permission by the Planning and Licensing Committee in December, the disposal of 3 Council owned sites at Roch 
St, Durham St and Entwistle Road to Countryside Properties was agreed in late December. These 3 sites will deliver over 170 homes with works 
due to commence on site in early 2019. A further 3-month time period to resolve outstanding planning issues was agreed for a 4th site (Milkstone 
Road/Norwich Street). Officers are working with Homes England to bring forward schemes for the Akzo Nobel site, Littleborough and Nixon 
Street, Castleton. A number of further Council assets have been reviewed for disposal for residential purposes. In 2018/19 the total area of 
development land disposed of is in excess of 1.9 hectares. 

08/01/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 E18003.A Consult on Draft Site Allocations Plan Document 31 October 2018   

 E18003.B Issue outline planning permission for J19 link road scheme 31 October 2018   

 E18003.C Support developers with submission of planning applications for 
significant brownfield sites e.g. Akzo Nobel, British Vita, 4 x Council 
sites 

31 December 2018   

 E18003.D Bring forward Council sites for disposal or regeneration e.g. Dodgson 
Street, Former HMR sites (including clauses delivery trigger / buy 
back clause) 

31 March 2019   

 

 

  

 

E18004 Create vibrant Town Centres.  31 March 2019   

Construction of the Rochdale Riverside scheme remains on programme with the opening of the site access to John Street. Piling works for the 
new M and S unit complete early January 2019. Concept plans and viability work has taken place for a Phase 2 residential scheme. Whilst 
unsuccessful, the Council was commended by the Retail, Property and Placemaking Community (REVO) for our work in regenerating Rochdale 
town centre. The new Rochdale indoor market opened during Q3. Work to progress a Residential Strategy for Rochdale Town Centre is ongoing 
with a feasibility study completed for 12 sites. As part of this work, the Council is in process of acquiring the vacant Central Retail Park site for 
residential use. During Q3 a new Investment Leaflet for Rochdale town centre was distributed with a Delivery Plan to be drafted during Q4. 

08/01/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 E18004.A Support developer to submit reserved matters application for phase 2 
of Rochdale Riverside scheme. 

31 March 2019   

 E18004.B New outdoor market operational in Rochdale town centre 31 August 2018   

 E18004.C Town Centre Residential Strategies agreed for Heywood, Middleton 
town centres 

31 December 2018   

 E18004.D 3 year Rochdale Town Centre Action Plan agreed. 31 December 2018   

 

P
age 13



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  3  Of  5 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

19 July 2018 
 

  

         

 E18004.E Launch Rochdale Town Centre Residential Strategy 31 August 2018   
 

  

 

E18005 Make the most of our built, natural and historic environment  31 March 2019   

Interviews took place during Q3 to appoint a Design team for the Town Hall Square project with a contractor to be formally appointed in early 
2019.  Officers are supporting the owner of Crimble Mill to support proposals for its sympathetic conversion and restoration for residential use.  A 
planning application is expected during 2019.  Work is taking place to assemble land around Tonge Hall, Middleton for an enabling development 
to fund works to the hall itself.  The Great Academies Trust has agreed to transfer surplus land to the Council.  Legal are reviewing any potential 
covenants that may restrict development prior to marketing the site. The Council and East Lancashire Railway jointly commissioned an economic 
benefits study to look at the viability of opening a heritage visitor centre at Heywood railway station.  A report is expected by February 2019.  
Works commenced on site to reopen the Manchester Road entrance into the station to improve access into the ELR station and visitor parking.   
Network Rail were also appointed to undertake feasibility work to provide a connection between the ELR heritage railway and mainline at 
Castleton.  This study will identify a preferred option by Spring 2019. Working with The Environment Agency a scheme for the Phase 1 River 
Roch flood alleviation scheme in Littleborough has been developed and a planning application is to be submitted in early 2019 with works to 
commence by 2020. 

08/01/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 E18005.A Complete Middleton THI project to include restoration of Long Street 
Church and School 

30 September 2018   

 E18005.B Develop viable and sustainable strategies for the repair and reuse of 
the borough’s heritage assets  

31 March 2019   

 E18005.C Support visitor and economic growth along the East Lancashire 
Railway through: 

31 December 2018   

 E18005.D Support the Environment Agency to develop River Roch Flood 
Alleviation Scheme between Littleborough and Central Rochdale 
including key planning applications, preferred design options, 
funding and outline business case approval and public consultation. 

31 December 2018   

 E18005.E Adopt Supplementary Planning Document for College Bank/Lower 
Falinge and Rochdale Infirmary sites. 

31 December 2018   

 E18005.F 10 positive actions taken to resolve significant breaches of 
planning/building control regulations to improve condition of 
derelict/vacant land and building construction standards across 
Borough. 

31 March 2019   

 

 

  

 

E18006 Provide an effective and efficient portfolio of Council assets.  31 October 2018   

Objectives: Complete Investment Strategy and review Councils asset base to deliver increased returns for revenue and capital income  

Work is progressing to review Councils asset base to deliver increased returns for revenue and capital income. An Investment Strategy will be 
completed and reported to Members following this review. 

08/01/19 

 

E18007 Maximise income for the Council.  31 March 2019   

So far in 2018/19 the sale of 9 assets have been completed in return for a capital receipt in excess of £1m. The Planning service has realised an 08/01/19 

P
age 14



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  4  Of  5 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

19 July 2018 
 

  

         

additional £67k discretionary fee income from the likes of pre application advice and Planning Performance Agreements with developers. Overall 
fee income is projected to be over £1m for the financial year, albeit this may be slightly below target. The building control service forecasts a 
shortfall of £50k by end of the financial year.  Technically, the service is performing in accordance with CIPFA financial rules (i.e. its fee related 
expenditure and income are balanced), in that it is in neither surplus or deficit for its building regulation fee related activities. However, the £50k 
efficiency saving required from the service is not likely to be realised in the final quarter, and hence the target of improving income by 5% will also 
not be achieved. All steps to increase opportunities for income generation will continue to be explored in an effort to reduce the deficit as much as 
possible over the next 3 months. 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 E18007.A Secure 2% growth in overall rental levels by proactive management of 
Council assets 

31 March 2019   

 E18007.B Minimum of 25 Council assets exposed to the market 31 March 2019   

 E18007.C Minimum of 50 Council assets reviewed for potential disposal to 
generate capital receipts 

31 March 2019   

 E18007.D Deliver the savings targets by investment in property through the 
Commercial Investment Fund 

31 March 2019   

 E18007.E Achieve minimum of £100,000 income through the promotion of new, 
discretionary chargeable services across Planning  

31 March 2019   

 E18007.F Achieve 5% increase in Building Control income over 2017/18 fee 
income.  

31 March 2019   

 E18007.G Secure additional £1m Business Rates payable growth through RDA 
assisted projects. 

31 March 2019   

 E18007.H Ensure Employment Links generates income to cover costs and 
agreed surplus for the year 

31 March 2019   

 

 

  

 

E18008 Capitalise on our investment in regional growth  31 March 2019   

A revised draft version of the GM Spatial Framework and 2040 Transport Delivery Plan was due to be published for consultation in early 2019. 
Work has taken place with neighbouring Districts, the GMCA and Transport for Greater Manchester to ensure Rochdale Borough fully benefits 
from this collaborative working. Following the release of £1.4m from the Mayors Cycling Challenge Fund, work has taken place to develop 
proposals for the Castleton corridor. Proposals have also been developed to identify highway and pedestrian improvements to the A58 corridor 
between Heap Bridge and Rochdale town centre and to develop a new bus corridor to serve the Northern Gateway employment site. Match 
funding secured from TfGM to commission a Masterplan for the Rochdale station gateway area. The Council is on target to meet agreed 
performance on skills and careers contracts commissioned by GMCA. 

08/01/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 E18008.A Secure minimum £10m funding from GM for Rochdale projects 31 March 2019   

 E18008.B Input to GMCA preparation of a revised consultation Draft Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework 

31 October 2018   

 E18008.C Adopt Rochdale Rail Strategy/Transport and Development Plan 31 December 2018   

 

P
age 15



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  5  Of  5 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

19 July 2018 
 

  

         

 E18008.D Form partnerships with adjoining Districts to plan delivery of cross 
boundary development opportunities 

31 December 2018   

 E18008.E Prepare a pipeline of transport investment projects to support 2040 
Transport Strategy, Transforming Cities Fund and development of a 
GM Transport Fund 2 

31 December 2018   

 E18008.F Work with TfGM/Oldham to secure a direct Metrolink service to 
Manchester Piccadilly 

31 March 2019   

 E18008.H Maximise the local benefit from the GM Full Fibre Networks 
programme 

31 March 2019  


 

 

  

 

E18009 Deliver high quality and effective services.  31 March 2019   

Planning performance remains on target and above all national performance measures during Q3. Staffing levels within the team have stabilised 
and recruitment to 2 vacant enforcement posts has taken place together with a planning policy offer in Strategic planning. 

08/01/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 E18009.A Planning Performance above national targets for planning services.    31 March 2019   

 E18009.B Supported programme to redesign business processes and develop 
new performance measures in Development Management service. 

31 March 2019   

 E18009.C Successful implementation and revision of the Council’s Asset 
Strategy. 

31 March 2019   

 

 

  

 

   

   

 

P
age 16



1

Rochdale Development Agency – Delivery Plan 2018-19

1. Investment & Marketing

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area
Action   For the key, see end of document

Lead Timing 

A. LEAD GENERATION AIMED TOWARDS TARGET SECTORS 
Development of key 
sectors to produce 
investment leads

Develop and deliver targeted marketing campaigns to promote Rochdale to companies in three business 
sectors. 

 New Business Development Manager appointed to lead on sector marketing
 Sector reports have been produced for logistics and manufacturing sectors. These are currently 

being professionally designed and will be published in January. 

NE  31/3/19

Work alongside agents 
and other professional 
advisors to promote the 
borough and generate 
new enquiries

Maintain and develop relationships with property agents and other professional advisors with an 
interest in Rochdale, sharing relevant marketing information with them.

 Attendance at networking events to meet Manchester professional advisors including Pro-
Manchester Annual Property Lunch in November 

 Regular contact with property agents about enquiries and available sites and premises

MW
NE  31/3/19

Respond to target 
sector enquiries

Manage a portfolio of enquiries from businesses in target sectors providing tailored property 
information and support to secure 20 investment projects for Rochdale creating 250 new jobs.

 Ongoing management of investment enquiries and provision of property information
 Regular contact with property agents and other partner organisations 

MW  31/3/19

B. ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT OF LOCAL BUSINESSES
 Account manage a 

portfolio of top 
companies across the 
borough 

Develop and maintain a database of leading Rochdale businesses and deliver a ‘call and care’ 
programme of activity to engage with 20 account managed businesses on an ongoing basis.

 13 account management meetings held in Q3

CH  31/03/19

Targeted business 
support through GM 
Growth Hub 

Work with the GM Growth Hub and the local Growth Advisor to ensure that 50 Rochdale businesses 
benefit from the services available through GM Growth Company. 

 Growth Advisor continues to work with Rochdale businesses
 Support for RBC in negotiating GM Growth Company services to be provided in Rochdale

CN  31/03/19

Closer links to the GM 
group of companies, in 
particular MIDAS and 

Work with MIDAS staff on investment enquiries and with MIDAS and Growth Company staff on account 
management of 10 significant companies in Rochdale, including joint visits and information sharing.

 Regular contact with MIDAS staff about account management and enquiries

CN  31/03/19

P
age 17



2

the Growth Hub  Review meeting with MIDAS was held in October
C. MARKETING STRATEGY TO ATTRACT INWARD INVESTORS

Prepare and implement 
a new marketing 
strategy for businesses 
in our target sectors

Create an overall marketing strategy for promoting Rochdale that links the work on target sectors and 
produce a new website for the RDA. 

 Marketing Manager appointed to lead on marketing strategy and website
 Consultants appointed to advise on marketing strategy for target sectors
 Contractors appointed for production of new RDA website and associated SEO

AS  31/12/18

Increased usage of 
social media to support 
marketing campaign

Develop the level of activity on the RDA social media channels to increase the number of people that 
view the RDA content, the amount of interaction on social media, and the number of website referrals. 
Target is to increase social media followers by 300.

 Twitter follower numbers continue to increase
 Campaign to increase engagement and interaction on twitter launched in December

AS  31/03/19

Structured approach to 
press releases and 
positive PR

Produce 12 press releases that celebrate the success of Rochdale businesses, working with Rochdale 
Council’s Communications Team as appropriate. 

 Six press releases relating to the work of the RDA have been issued in Q3

AS  31/03/19

Work with the Rochdale 
Place Brand initiative

Work with Rochdale Council and Rochdale Place Board to deliver the Rochdale Place Brand initiative 
including four local networking events and external promotion.

 Board meeting held in September in advance of Ambassadors’ event in October
 Rochdale Ambassadors scheme relaunched as ThisisRochdale at event in October with over 100 

business people in attendance. Next event planned for February 2019
 Support provided for ThisisRochdale at Rochdale Business Awards in November to include a 

special award for inward investment
 Attendance at Autumn Molesworth network event with Paul Dixon, chair of Thisisrochdale, 

leading the events and promoting the Ambassadors imitative

AS
CN  31/03/19

Work with Rochdale 
Business Awards 
steering group

Work with the Steering Group to deliver the Rochdale Business Awards in November, providing 
administrative and secretarial support and managing communications with members.

 Over 60 entries received with judging taking place in early October
 Biggest event took place on 9th November with c. 280 guests. Good press coverage by both 

Rochdale Online and Rochdale Observer.

CH  20/11/18

D. SUPPORT THE GROWTH OF THE COMMERCIAL PROPERTY MARKET
General Work with agents and owners to secure occupiers for units and design and build options on the major 

business parks in the borough including Stakehill Industrial Estate and Heywood Distribution Park. 
Target is to support property deals totalling 150,000 sq ft.

 Supporting owners of Stakehill in retaining existing businesses during lease renewal process
 Worked successfully with the owners / agents of Link 95 in Heywood to assist in securing 

occupier for the 95,000 sq ft unit
 In regular contact with property agents on the borough’s business parks about availability for 

MW  31/03/19

P
age 18



3

enquiries
Kingsway Business Park Work with Wilson Bowden, landlords and their agents to promote Kingsway to potential occupiers. 

Target is to support property deals totalling 150,000 sq ft.
 Construction progressing well on 75,000sqft unit on Plot N, regular contact with new owner / 

occupier. Work also underway on 75,000 sq ft on Plot F.
 Monthly enquiry and marketing update meetings held with the agents and owners of the 

remaining units including the council-funded Logic at Kingsway scheme

MW  31/03/19

P
age 19



4

2. Business Parks and Development

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area
Action   Lead Timing

A. To promote and improve a portfolio of competitive, high quality Business Parks and Industrial Estates including (but not limited to):  

Work with Partners and Rochdale Council to progress the Junction 19 Link Road Scheme to enable a 
start on site in 2019/20     

DC / 
RD / 
ER

March 19

Work with Rochdale Council to secure planning approval for the new link road and associated residential 
/ employment development.

 Planning Committee in March 2018 minded to approve application
 Secretary of State advised that application does not require ‘call-in’ in April
 Decision notice will be issued following completion of the planning legal agreement (s106) 

which is with the developer and has 13 of the 14 signatures complete

RD  June 18

Reach agreement with Rochdale Council and partners about the most appropriate form of main 
contractor procurement. 

 Procurement Strategy now agreed by all partners and signed off by Rochdale cabinet in 
December 2018.

 OJEU procurement process due to commence January 2019  

RD  June 18

Work with Cadent, Rochdale Council and partners to reach an agreed solution to achieve construction 
over the gas pipeline.

 Agreement has been reached with cadent about the principle of protecting the existing pipeline 
rather than diverting it

 Detailed design work by Cadent will be commenced in early 2019

DC / 
RD  September 

18

Secure agreement of the heads of terms for the legal agreement between Rochdale Council and the 
developer for the Junction 19 Link Road scheme to ensure private sector funding and delivery.

 Draft Heads of Terms have been drafted and shared between Rochdale Council and Russell 
Homes      

DC / 
RD / 
SP

 December 
18

Work with Rochdale Council and partners to commence a main contractor procurement process.
 OJEU Procurement process for a main contractor is due to commence January 2019 

RD / 
ER  September 

18

South Heywood 
Employment Area / 
Junction 19 Link Road

Work with Rochdale Council and partners to submit a Full Business case to Transport for Greater 
Manchester to secure the Growth Deal Funding, and to meet the funder’s information requirements.

 Work on Full Business case due to commence in January 2019 with a target submission date of 
mid-2019  

RD / 
ER  February 19

P
age 20



5

Work with partners to maintain business support for the scheme.
 Dialogue with businesses is being maintained  

ER  March 19

Work to deliver development across the Business Park in accordance with the overall Strategic 
Objectives of the Kingsway Partnership   

DC / 
RD / 
ER 

March 19

Work with JD Sports and the Kingsway Partnership to ensure their extended unit becomes operational 
and fully integrated with the rest of Kingsway, meeting all planning obligations.

 JD Sports fit out of the new extension was completed in Q3
 JDS are undertaking a phased ramping up of activity in their extension (Distribution Centre 2) 

which will become fully operational in summer 2019

RD / 
ER  December 

18

Manage the construction of a feature wall at the northern end of Sir Isaac Newton Way. 
 Wall constructed in Autumn 2018

ER  December 
18

Work with the Kingsway Partnership to review the Kingsway Masterplan.
 Masterplan will be reviewed as part of the ongoing discussion concerning future delivery 

mechanisms for Kingsway
 Current priority is to deliver 200,000 square feet of new units by Mid 2019

RD / 
ER  December 

18 

Working with Homes England to agree the disposal strategy and secure a disposal for an appropriate end 
use for Dixon Green and Silver Hill Farms.  

 Initial discussions taking place with David Wilson Homes about a scheme for Plot W 
incorporating Silver Hill Farm, with initial plans tabled in Q3

 Marketing Strategy for Dixon Green Farm in preparation by Homes England 

RD  December 
18 

Work with Greater Manchester Police and the Kingsway Partnership to secure and implement a 
permanent injunction and fast response protocol to minimise the impact of traveller incursions on the 
business.   

 Temporary Injunction implemented in spring 2018
 Traveller incursions have decreased from 66 (totalling 430 days) between January and 

November 2017 to 21 (totalling 10 days) the same period in 2018.  
 Court date for permanent injunction proposed for 2019

RD  December 
18

Work with Wilson Bowden Developments to agree a commercially acceptable funding package and 
progress development of a medium unit scheme on Plot G. 

 Discussions have taken place – price for construction is due by the end of January to establish 
viability

DC / 
RD / 
SP

 December 
18

Kingsway Business Park 

Work with Kingsway Partnership to submit planning applications for 2 new buildings across the Business 
Park.    

 Trade Mouldings planning application approved in July 2018 (construction commenced 
September 2018) 

 Plot F planning application approved in September 2018 (construction commenced November 

DC 
/RD 
/ER

 March 19

P
age 21



6

2018)   
Work with Transport for Greater Manchester and Kingsway Businesses to secure the continuation of the 
Kingsway Link bus service for 2019/20 and beyond.

 Further private sector contribution agreed by one of the Kingsway Businesses
 Alternative funding sources being pursued to enable finalisation of 2019/20 budget     

RD / 
ER  March 19

Work with Canmoor and other landowners and occupiers to secure and enhance the economic 
attractiveness of Stakehill Industrial Estate 

RD / 
ER

March 19

Organise a further occupier’s breakfast event.
 Occupiers Business Breakfast held in October 

ER  September 
18

Work with Rochdale Boroughwide Housing to implement a CCTV system across the Estate.  
 Order has been placed for a seven camera CCTV system with RBH following resolution of the 

location of the relay units to ensure line of sight back to GMP central control room   
 E-On have requested to re-survey the lighting columns prior to any work being commissioned – 

we are awaiting confirmation this has been carried out. 

ER  September 
18

Liaising with Rochdale Council and other relevant authorities to reduce the impact of unhitched trailers 
parked on the estate roads. 

 Implementation of the Traffic Regulation Order for double yellow lines and the parkwide CCTV 
system will assist in reducing the instances of unhitched trucks parked on the road

 TRO is with Highways to progress

RD / 
ER  September 

18

Work with Rochdale Council and businesses to agree on-street parking restrictions, including potential 
double yellow lines, and commence a Traffic Regulation Order. 

 Consultation with businesses on the proposed on-street parking restriction undertaken in late 
2018.

 Work on preparing a Traffic Regulation Order has been initiated with Rochdale Council’s 
Highways team leading on the TRO

RD / 
ER  December 

18

Investigate the feasibility of a Business Improvement District covering Stakehill Industrial Estate.
 RDA and Canmoor are working with specialist Business Improvement District consultants who 

prepared and secured approval for the Rochdale Town Centre BID.
 Proposals to progress a BID to be circulated to businesses in 2019

RD  December 
18 

Organise further Highways working group meetings as necessary. 
 Highways matters were discussed at the Occupiers event in October
 Next event is due in Feb 2019

ER  March 19 

Stakehill Industrial 
Estate

Work with Rochdale Council and partners to maintain and enhance the landscaping within the Estate. 
 Areas of poor quality landscaping have been identified and the Estate Manager has been asked 

to contact individual owners  
 RDA continues to contract clear ups of common land and landscaping works to maintain quality 

across the extate

ER  March 19

P
age 22



7

Development  - Property Growth Fund

Manage the Asset Development Fund, working in partnership with Rochdale Council. 
 Consideration being given to a number of potential development schemes
 Number of opportunities to use ADF to benefit existing sites being explored 

DC / 
LR / 
SP

 March 19

Develop financially viable direct development schemes for 2 council owned sites across the Borough.
 Heads of Terms agreed with a local company for a 13,000 sq. ft. pre let at Bradferns
 Tender documents being prepared for the Bradferns scheme

LR / 
SP  March 19

Commence the construction of the Bradferns direct development scheme.
 Remediation works expected to start March 2019

LR / 
SP  March 19

Undertaking Direct 
Development (Asset 
Development Fund & 
Direct Development 
Fund)

Submit a planning application for 1 direct development scheme.
 Planning application submitted in September for the Bradferns scheme

LR / 
SP  March 19

Manage the Commercial Investment Fund, working in partnership with Rochdale Council.  
 Southgate Industrial Estate purchased during Q2, Central Retail Park purchased during Q3.
 Consideration being given to a number of potential investment schemes
 Work continues on the exploration of setting up a trading company

DC / 
LR / 
SP

 March 19

Assess 4 opportunities where the Commercial Investment Fund can be used to the benefit of Rochdale 
Borough.

 Multiple opportunities currently being assessed for consideration
 Over 4 opportunities rejected for not meeting the CIF criteria
 2 schemes purchased during 2018

LR / 
SP  March 19

Commercial Investment  
Fund  

Complete deals totalling up to £10m of investment where the Commercial Investment Fund is used for 
the benefit of Rochdale Borough.

 Southgate Industrial Estate acquired circa £2m  
 Central Retail Park acquired circa £13m

LR / 
SP  March 19

Trans Pennine Trading Estate  

Trans Pennine Trading 
Estate

Work with Langtree and other landowners and occupiers to secure and enhance the economic 
attractiveness of Trans Pennine Trading Estate, including highway and security improvements.

 Langtree have undertaken improvements to landscaping and buildings
 RDA working with Langtree to define a programme of improvement  to public areas within the 

estate

RD / 
ER  March 19

P
age 23



8

3. Town Centres

Priority 
No

Work Area
Action  Lead Timing 

A. Reduce vacancies in Town Centres

Continue promotion and implementation of Business Rates Relief scheme and seek to secure the re-
occupation of 5 vacant properties in the town centres (Rochdale, Heywood & Middleton).

 Simpsons Furniture (Heywood), Medicine Tap (Rochdale) and Nisa Rochdale approved for 
rate relief scheme and are now open

 Unfortunately Nisa closed down in Q3

ER  March 19

Monitor vacancy levels including the implications of the business rates revaluation and transitional 
relief on RTC and prepare a report on the success on a quarterly basis.

 On-going vacancy rates have reduced in RTC.  A review of the  business rates and start up 
grant schemes is underway with a view to relaunching a revised scheme in April 2019  

ER  March 19

Continue promotion and implementation of the shopfront & start up grant scheme for independent 
retailers and seek to secure 5 grant approvals.      

 Simpsons Furniture (Heywood) & Medicine Tap (Rochdale) approved for grant scheme and 
now open.  Abrahams Pocket (Rochdale) yet to open

ER  March 19

Business Rates 
Reduction & 
Independent retailer 
shop front scheme

Prepare schedule of vacancies in the town centres with support from TCM and discuss bespoke 
actions with landlords and agents to promote occupation of vacant properties.

 Long term vacancies identified. Engagement with property owners for mitigation. More 
discussions with other owners on-going 

ER  March 19

B. Rochdale Riverside  

Monitor and coordinate on-site construction activity, road & footpath closures, TROs, phasing and 
programme, including monitoring compliance with the legal obligations.   

 Regularly liaison with the contractor (Willmott Dixon) to agree programme, road & footpath 
closures and phasing (the scheme is currently on programme to open in mid-2020)  

 Updated timeslices and public information for the town centre website 

ER  March 19  

Confirm and monitor the scheme appraisal, cash flow, and ERV schedule.
 The scheme appraisal has been confirmed and monitoring is on-going.  ERV schedule is 

updated monthly 

SP/GD  March 19

Deliver the new  
Rochdale Riverside
retail and leisure 
development 

Work with Genr8 to confirm and secure approvals for the final planning & design of the scheme, 
including non-material amendments and compliance with the planning conditions.  Work with Genr8 
to secure planning application for the Baillie Street properties. 

GD  Sept 18

P
age 24



9

 The planning application for the Baillie Street properties has been approved
 An application for revisions to the car park and other non-material amendments are to be 

submitted in early 2019 once detailed design issues are confirmed
Work with Genr8 to conclude M&S dispute and to secure & accommodate further occupiers for the 
scheme. 

 M&S dispute has been resolved and M&S will now be occupying the scheme
 Detailed discussions are on-going with a 2 additional potential new occupiers for the 

scheme 

GD  Sept 18

Work with RBC Communications team and Genr8 to implement the communications strategy for the 
scheme (press releases, website, social media, newsletters, signage and hoardings).

 The  town centre website continues to be updated and reviewed
 On-going communication and press releases carried out at key milestones

ER/AS  March 19

Work with Genr8 to establish the proposals for Phase 2 of the scheme.
 Initial scheme layouts and appraisals have been prepared.  On-going discussions are taking 

place with Genr8 and RDA to review funding options for Phase 2

 
SP/GD 

Sept 18 

C. Rochdale Town Centre 

Complete adaptation and fit out works for the former Santander building to provide an indoor 
market.

 Works to the building were completed in August and the building is now open

LR  Aug 18

Confirm layout and secure establishment of the outdoor market on The Butts.
 The outdoor market is operational

LR  Aug 18

Secure signed Market Contract with Quarterbridge. 
 Quarterbridge have been removed from the market after underperformance, with the RDA 

now running the market in the interim

JH/LR  May 18

Work with Quarterbridge to promote and undertake the marketing & letting campaign to ensure the 
indoor and outdoor market are let.

 A café operator, baker, greengrocer and butcher are trading from the indoor market and 
there is interest from another occupier

 There are currently a number of new outdoor market traders on different days, with 
marketing due to continue during Q4 

JH/LR  Aug 18

Rochdale market 

Confirm final detailed design, complete TROs and implement the servicing & loading scheme on 
South Parade in accordance with an agreed programme.

 The works to create the new taxi rank on South Parade are complete and the rank will 
become operational in early 2019. 

LR  Sept 18

The Walk / Butts  
frontage improvement 

Complete the design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents and procure a contractor to 
undertake a comprehensive shop front improvement scheme.

ER/KK  Sept 18

P
age 25



10

scheme  Initial ideas for improvements to The Walk are being prepared  and will be progressed in 
2019

The Ginnels / Butts 
Avenue improvement 
scheme  

Prepare a masterplan and brief for a range of environmental improvements to enhance the area as a 
niche food & drink area.  Complete the design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents and 
procure a contractor to undertake the agreed scheme. 

 Design options received for Butts Avenue and detailed options being prepared.  
 Recently met with Property Services, Street Lighting and Environmental Management to 

begin to draft a schedule of works and associated costings
 Further consultation with businesses is underway

ER/KK  Sept 18

Environmental 
improvements to 
support  Rochdale 
Riverside

Identify suitable schemes, complete the design work, confirm costs, identify budgets, prepare tender 
documents and procure a contractor to undertake cultural enhancement schemes with a focus on 
green walls and murals.

 Initial scheme options are currently being reviewed and will be progressed in 2019

ER/KK  Sept 18

South Parade  
improvement scheme

Complete design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents and procure a contractor to 
undertake a property frontage & block improvement scheme to improve appearance of shop fronts 
and upper floors along with improved paving. 

 Scheme to be progressed in 2019 

ER/KK  March 19

Negotiate with the property owners to acquire the site or secure a licence to deliver a 
comprehensive environmental improvement scheme.  

 Discussions are on-going with the site owners to secure a temporary use of the site.  
Scheme to be progressed in 2019   

ER/KK  Aug 18Bell Street public realm 
scheme 

Complete design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents and procure a contractor to 
undertake the improvement scheme to provide a high quality square/park adjoining the Rochdale 
Riverside site.

 Design options prepared and will be progressed once formal agreement with owners has 
been secured  

ER/KK  March 19

Complete preparation and secure approval of the Drake Street strategy, including delivery 
programme, governance and budget. 

 Report with revised Drake Street Strategy incorporating HAZ, Town Centre Residential 
Strategy and Town Centre Challenge approved by Cabinet in September 2018.

NB/KK  June 18

Coordinate implementation of the approved Drake Street strategy including the reuse of vacant 
properties /sites and the completion of identified improvement schemes.

 Grant aided work to 1 Drake Street complete and ready to go to market, grant aided work 
at 19-21 Church Lane due to complete in February 2019.

 Discussions with multiple developers regarding Ivesons site and key vacant buildings, liaison 
with Strategic Housing regarding two problem sites.

NB/KK  March 19

Drake Street strategy 
and  Heritage Action 
Zone

Implementation of the Heritage Action Zone delivery plan to secure the repair and reuse of heritage NB/KK  March 19

P
age 26



11

assets.
 Manchester School of Architecture work (40 students) has started on Drake Street.
 Buttress commissioned to carry out PSiCA development work, due to complete January 

2019.
Rochdale town centre 
investment strategy & 
action plan 

Confirm and complete the town centre investment strategy and associated Delivery Plan and Action 
Plans in consultation with internal stakeholders and Members.

 The investment leaflet has been completed, printed and distributed
 The Delivery Plan and Action Plan are currently being drafted

ER/GD  June 18

F. Heritage assets 

Complete procurement of Design Team for the phased adaptation work. 
 Cost manager and structural engineers appointed subject to contracts
 Process underway for architects, interpretation & exhibition designers, activity planner and 

business planner with the full team due to be in place mid-February.

JH  July 18

Coordinate work needed to progress the HLF development stage & Round 2 submission, including 
activity plan, designs, cost plan & business plan and the soft market testing of commercial partners. 

 Permission to Start agreed by HLF
 Appointment of team underway and to be completed in the new year 

JH  March 19

Implement the long 
term Town Hall HLF 
strategy

Coordinate implementation of the Phase 1 improvement works to the building including 
engagement with Historic England.  

 Scope of Phase 1 under consideration and awaiting procurement of design team

JH  March 19

Procure and appoint a landscape architect through a design brief to create designs to transform the 
square including public consultation and coordinate design of architectural lighting scheme in town 
centre. 

 Procurement completed (shortlisted 8 teams) for the design team. Appointment to be 
confirmed once the ‘Alcatel’ standstill period expired (mid Jan 19).

JH  June 18

Confirm and implement the delivery programme for the public realm works and the architectural 
lighting scheme.

 Tenders received and awaiting guidance from STAR on appointment for Touchstones 
lighting

 Lighting Scheme for Memorial Gardens is currently with the contractor with works due to 
be completed by March

ER  March 19

Town Hall Square & 
Cultural Heritage 
quarter public realm

Confirm the strategy for the acquisition and future use of the former magistrates building, including 
funding and delivery mechanism. 

 GMCA led the bid for DCMS Cultural Development Fund however it was oversubscribed and 
2 other GM bids were shortlisted

JH  Dec 18

P
age 27



12

 Meeting arranged with RBC to discuss funding. New round of negotiations expected

Agree boundary & confirm school land, prepare development brief, secure planning permission and 
undertake valuation of enabling development in dialogue with Historic England.

 In-principal agreement to transfer land agreed by academy board, subject to agreement of 
improvements to playing field drainage. Working towards agreement by board in March.

 Cabinet Report to follow Academy board approval.

NB  Dec 18

Market the development opportunity and secure capital receipt. 
 To be marketed following cabinet approval

NB  Dec 18

Tonge Hall

Prepare brief for repair works to building and delivery programme in dialogue with Historic England
 To be prepared once scale of capital funding identified

NB  Dec 18

Coordinate implementation of the delivery phase following Stage 2 HLF approval. 
 Permission to Start approved by HLF
 Tenders for design team received and being evaluated with team due to start end Jan 19.

JH  March 19

Provide project management support for the appointment of consultants to complete surveys, 
research and investigations.

 Will work with design team (once in place) & STAR to procure contractor and to ensure 
client’s CDM duties discharged 

JH  Dec 18

Rochdale Fire Station 
Museum

Confirm proposals for the adaptation and use of the first floor, delivery programme, procure design 
team, confirm appraisal and implement.

 RIBA Stage 4 plans for co-working use now being developed alongside proposals for new 
museum

 Bid submitted to GMCA for additional funding towards projects based on ERDF underspend
 NE leading on marketing of opportunity to businesses and discussions with potential 

operators ongoing

JH  March 19

Implementation of the emergency works needed to protect features of significance and to continue 
regular inspections and repairs, in discussion with Historic England. 

 Professional advisor appointed. Minor works ongoing. Structural works to be tendered.

NB  Oct 18Hopwood Hall

Work with Hopwood Dupree and Historic England to prepare a coherent and deliverable strategy 
and programme for the restoration and re-use of the building. 

 Liaising with Hopwood Hall College and Hopwood DePree to find workable solution

NB  March 19

Heritage Strategy Work with RBC Planning and partners to undertake a review of heritage projects and assets and 
prepare a draft Heritage Strategy. 

 Initial draft prepared and to be progressed in 2019

GD  Dec 18

East Lancs Railway Complete a Network Rail approved Castleton Extension Feasibility Study
 Network rail appointed to carry out feasibility study 

NB  Dec 18

P
age 28



13

Complete a costed Manchester Road Access Scheme for Heywood Station
 Contractors onsite carrying out works. Completion due January 2019.

NB  Mar 19

Develop Heywood engine shed project 
 Feasibility study commissioned.

NB  Mar 19

Middleton Town centre Complete the paving scheme and shop front improvement scheme
 Tender completed, contractor on site, due for completion in January 

NB/KK  Oct 18

P
age 29



14

Performance Indicators RDA Annual 
Target

Investment 
Team Only Q3 Cumulative Commentary

Number of companies receiving support from Business 
Growth Hub 50 50 17 33 
Number of successful inward investment projects receiving 
RDA assistance 10 10 3 
Number of local companies relocating/expanding with RDA 
assistance 20 20 2 9 
Number of jobs safeguarded/relocated by RDA assisted 
companies 350 350 126 297 
Number of new jobs created by RDA assisted companies or 
projects 250 250 98 217 
Amount of floor space occupied by RDA assisted projects 
(sq ft) 500,000 500,000 172,000 392,000 
Total level of public sector investment secured or spent on 
RDA assisted  projects £10,000,000 £500,000 £540,000 3,555,630 
Total level of private sector investment generated by 
assisted projects £30,000,000 £5,000,000 £10,050,000 21,520,000 
Number of vacant properties re-occupied with support of 
Town Centre business rates scheme 6 0 2 
Number of grant approvals for the Town Centre shopfront 
& start up grant scheme 6 0 1 
Amount of commercial floor space built with RDA support 
(sq ft) 300,000 150,000 77,000 213,000 

P
age 30



15

Key

 Achieved 

 Progress on track to 
achieving target

 Steady progress with 
minor risk of potential 
delays

 High Risk of project not 
being achieved

 Not Achieved

Amount of commercial floor space refurbished with RDA 
support (sq ft) 500,000 150,000 15,000 15,000 

Key Activity Indicators 

Total number of enquiries 200 200 32 147 

Number of Rochdale companies account managed 50 50 13 33 

Number of positive news stories issued 20 12 6 18 

Number of new social media followers 300 300 118 231 

P
age 31



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 24th January 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Environment, Cabinet 
Member for 
Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture, 
Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Business, 
Skills & Employment, 
Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Development & 
Housing

Report Author Ben Jorgensen
Public/Private Document

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2018-19: Quarter 3 Performance 
Update

Executive Summary

1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 3 (1st October – 31st December 2018) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Neighbourhoods 
Directorate Plan 2018-19

Recommendation

2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and 
the appendices.

Reason for Recommendation

3.

3.2

3.3

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 

The Quarter 3 progress report for the Neighbourhoods Directorate is attached 
at Appendix 1. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control 

Page 32

Agenda Item 9



3.4

3.5

Green: Action completed by the target date 
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple.

This year the directorate plans are formatted differently to include milestones 
for each directorate action. This enables O&S to monitor the work that must be 
completed, to support achievement of the action. 

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2018-19 Progress

Performance Overview

70.6% (12) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2018-19 are still 
ongoing. A further 29.4% (5) of the actions have passed their due date and 
are not fully complete. The chart below shows the overall performance of the 
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 3. 

The twelve actions that are not fully complete but are within the action date 
(Purple) relate to:

 Prevent and minimise the risk of tensions to support a more cohesive 
and integrated community

 Implement integrated place based teams to deliver fiscal and wider 
benefits 

 Work in partnership to determine vision and priorities to offer strategic 

Page 33



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

direction for the Borough and the Council
 Increase number of homelessness preventions 
 Ensure the Council’s Housing Allocations Policy and Scheme meets 

statutory requirements and makes the maximises the use of housing 
stock in the borough

 Increase number of empty homes being brought back into use
 Deliver successful CPO Programme
 Increase in the amount of waste being recycled to achieve an annual 

50% recycling rate
 Improve the cleanliness of our streets and open spaces and public 

realm
 Deliver J19 Link Road
 Deliver highways capital programme and additional investment 
 Increase Enforcement Activity

The five actions that are not fully complete and the action due date has 
passed (Amber) relate to:

 Work with partners to determine priorities and deliver strategy for 
reducing crime and disorder 

 Agree plan for embedding Public Service Reform across the borough 
 Work in partnership to develop and deliver Rochdale’s digital future
 Raise awareness, increase reach, facilitate engagement and 

encourage behaviour change to help in promoting the borough of 
Rochdale as a desirable place to live, work and do business.

 Maximise housing offer opportunities presented by devolution

Quarter 3 Highlights

A significant amount of work has been undertaken to establish priority areas 
for the Safer Communities Partnership, which included a full threat, risk and 
harm assessment and a prioritisation scoring process to establish thematic 
priorities. Lead Officers have been identified from across the partnership to 
oversee the five overarching priorities (1. Tacking Domestic Violence and 
abuse 2. Substance misuse 3. Complex safeguarding 4. Town Centre 
economies 5. Community cohesion, resilience and integration). Workshops 
will continue to take place to establish the aims and objectives of each priority.

The Council has successfully delivered a number of training sessions on 
County Lines with safeguarding professionals which looks at empowering 
vulnerable individuals to become more resilient to participating in criminal 
activity. This work will continue in the next quarter but will focus on parents 
and communities.

The Public Service Reform Steering Group has agreed Terms of Reference 
and will have overall oversight of all areas of PSR across the borough, 
including health and social care integration, Early Help, policing and integrated 
place teams.

The channel shift plan is being delivered on schedule and take-up of online 
services is increasing, with over 17,000 registered MyAccount users and up to 

Page 34



4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

50% of Environmental Management reports now being made through the 
website. Work continues on the Digital Strategy which is being drafted. The 
appointment of a Programme Manager to lead the next phase of the Council’s 
customer transformation programme is anticipated in January, which will mark 
the start of a 6 month analysis phase to identify priorities, areas for 
improvement and savings.

There has been some positive progress this quarter in terms of the promotion 
of Rochdale as a desirable place to live, to work and do business. This 
includes:
 124 positive news articles generated
 Promotion of Rochdale half marathon (registered runners were up 30% 

on last year)
 Promotion of Literature and Ideas festival (ticket sales up 10% on last 

year)
 The council’s corporate website was awarded runner-up in the iNetwork 

Innovation Awards 2018.
 The Communications Team led on delivery of our second ACE Staff 

Awards which took place on 29th November which again was a great 
success.

The number of long-term empty properties continues to fall by small 
increments, the current total is 844. During this quarter the Empty Property 
team has intervened in 20 cases where the property has come back into use 
(16 of these properties had been empty over 2 years), 1 property has been 
served with a Final Empty Dwelling Management Order and refurbishment 
work has commenced, 1 property has entered the leasing scheme and 8 have 
been referred.

In terms of delivering a successful CPO programme a total of ten reports 
seeking resolution to create a CPO have now been presented to Cabinet and 
approved. Negotiations with site owners continue in parallel and are 
progressing well. A decision will need to be taken in Q4 18/19 as to the timing 
of future Cabinet reports, in order to allow officers to progress the ten cases 
where Cabinet has given authorisation to proceed.

Raw data from Q3 shows year on year improvements in recycling rates for 
each of the 3 months of October (1.36%), November (0.15%) and December 
(3.04% to date).

Proactive forward planning has helped achieve an efficient leaf collection this 
year enabling the streets / roads to be free of leaves prior to the festive break. 
Closer monitoring of the hard surface herbicide contractor has proved 
beneficial with greater herbicide coverage throughout the borough. Street 
cleaning equipment such as electric and petrol suckers are currently being 
trialled in hard to reach areas. APSE have developed LAMS (Land Audit 
Management System) a mobile App is now on line for more accurate 
recording of cleanliness standards.

Year 1 of the 2 year LTP capital programme has now been completed. Prep 
work for year 2 schemes has started. The footway and resurfacing work 

Page 35



4.14

4.15

4.16

associated with this programme is running well and has been fully 
programmed out. Year 2 of the gully replacement programme is approximately 
50% complete. A number of high risk flood site schemes have been delivered 
on site and the remainder will be completed in 2018/19.

Headline enforcement activity is now at a consistently high level compared to 
both the same period last year and to previous calendar years. The Unit 
continues to undertake all routine enquiries and investigations into a range of 
environmental offences including accumulations of waste on private land, 
highways issues, litter and dog fouling complaints, commercial waste 
compliance issues, abandoned vehicles, fly-posting and graffiti.

Performance Issues

None

Alternatives Considered

Not applicable

Costs and Budget Summary

5. None

Risk and Policy Implications

None6.

Consultation

7. Not required

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 
2018-19

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, , 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 36



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2018-19  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  1  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 July 2018 
 

  

         

   

N18001 Work with partners to determine priorities and deliver strategy 
for reducing crime and disorder  

 31 October 2018   

A significant amount of work has been undertaken to establish priority areas for the Safer Communities Partnership, which included a full threat, 
risk and harm assessment and a prioritisation scoring process to establish thematic priorities. Lead Officers have been identified from across the 
partnership to oversee the five overarching priorities (1. Tacking Domestic Violence and abuse 2. Substance misuse 3. Complex safeguarding 4. 
Town Centre economies 5. Community cohesion, resilience and integration). Workshops have taken place and will continue to take place to 
establish the aims and objectives of each priority. The board is due to meet on 22nd January 2019 to review progress. On target to complete new 
strategy and community safety plan in time for launch in April 2019. 

03/01/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18001.A Agree priorities following strategic  threat assessment 31 May 2018   

 N18001.B Establish priority sub groups 30 June 2018   

 N18001.C Develop new community safety plan 31 October 2018   
 

 

  

 

 

N18002 Prevent and minimise the risk of  tensions to support a more 
cohesive and integrated community 

 31 January 2019   

Foundations for Peace, who completed community engagement work within Rochdale and a report on outcomes secured further funding to 
deliver further work across other parts of the borough. They have established a working group to determine potential areas of interventions and 
are identifying key stakeholders that exist and work with communities in these areas. The Council has successfully delivered a number of training 
sessions on County Lines with safeguarding professionals which looks at empowering vulnerable individuals to become more resilient to 
participating in criminal activity. This work will continue in the next quarter but will focus on parents and communities. 

03/01/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18002.A Completion of review on community conflict work by Foundations for 
Peace  

31 July 2018   

 N18002.B Develop and commence implementation of Action Plan incorporating 
recommendations from GM reviews post Manchester Arena attack 

31 October 2018   

 N18002.C Lead and complete review for Greater Manchester to develop a sub-
regional model to manage risk and  community tensions on critical 
and major incidents 

31 January 2019   

 

 

  

 

N18003 Implement integrated place based teams to deliver fiscal and 
wider benefits  

 31 March 2019   

Rochdale integrated place teams in place and performing well and now considered to be Business As Usual. College Bank and Lower Fallinge 
place-based working is delivering £4.05 in cost benefit for every £1 spent. Work has started in Heywood. The work of the team has been 
recognised for its impact on reducing vulnerability and as best practice by MHCLG. The Welsh Government has shown an interest in the work of 
the integrated place teams as have Belfast City Council and Portsmouth City Council. A Greater Manchester event in planned for late November 

03/01/19 

P
age 37



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2018-19  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  2  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 July 2018 
 

  

         

where discussion will take place on the scaling up of the best practice from the work of integrated teams. The work of the Place Teams, and in 
particular the evidence of the benefits of the approach, has been cited at several events recently, including the GM launch of the new model for 
public services and the Yorkshire and West Humber Public Health Conference. Early preparations are taking place to prepare for expansion of 
the place teams to provide geographical coverage over all the township areas integrated with early help and health and social care, should it be 
financially viable to do so. 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18003.A Establish Business As Usual teams in Rochdale 30 April 2018   

 N18003.B Report annual outcomes in Rochdale teams (Kortholt, Lower Falange/ 
College Bank) and Heywood 

31 March 2019   

 N18003.C Establish new team in Heywood 31 August 2018   
 

 

  

 

N18004 Agree plan for embedding Public Service Reform across the 
borough  

 31 December 2018   

The Public Service Reform Steering Group has agreed Terms of Reference and will have overall oversight of all areas of PSR across the 
borough, including health and social care integration, Early Help, policing and integrated place teams. The group will be meeting in February and 
will be reviewing progress on PSR in line with the principles agreed at a Greater Manchester 'Further and Faster' conference in late November. 
Discussions are taking place regarding enhancing the governance arrangements further alongside the health and social care agenda. 

03/01/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18004.A Establish a Public Service Reform Steering Group 31 July 2018   

 N18004.B Plan agreed for future roll out of PSR across borough 31 December 2018   
 

 

  

 

N18005 Work in partnership to develop and deliver Rochdale’ s digital 
future 

 31 October 2018   

Multiple new Revenues and Benefits services have been added to MyAccount, enabling customers to access more services online including, 
most recently and significantly, reporting benefits change of circumstances. The channel shift plan is being delivered on schedule and take-up of 
online services is increasing, with over 17,000 registered MyAccount users and up to 50% of Environmental Management reports now being 
made through the website. Work continues on the Digital Strategy which is being drafted. Following the success of the MJ Digital Transformation 
Award, we have carried out multiple speaking engagements and provided support directly to several authorities, sharing our expertise across the 
sector and boosting Rochdale’s reputation and profile. The appointment of a Programme Manager to lead the next phase of the Council’s 
customer transformation programme is anticipated in January, which will mark the start of a 6 month analysis phase to identify priorities, areas for 
improvement and savings. 

03/01/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18005.A Plan in place for maximising take up of MyAccount for residents and 
businesses   

31 May 2018   

 N18005.B Agree boroughwide Digital strategy 31 October 2018   
 

 

  

 

P
age 38



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2018-19  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  3  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 July 2018 
 

  

         

N18006 Raise awareness, increase reach, facilitate engagement and 
encourage behaviour change to help in promoting the borough of 
Rochdale as a desirable place to live, work and do business. 

 31 December 2018   

A great deal of progress has been made during the quarter. The first media training session for members was completed and social media 
training for members took place and a review will take place to ensure improved take up for the next session. There were 124 positive news 
articles generated, including 13 national, regional and trade press articles,157 media enquiries were responded to and there were 105 media 
releases. The Communications team is currently arranging social media training for businesses. The internal weekly bulletin had its highest 
reported readership on 9 November with1,542 views. Promotion of the Rochdale half marathon took place, with registered runners up by 30 per 
cent and ticket sales for the literature and ideas festival were up 10 per cent on the previous year. The council’s corporate website was awarded 
runner-up in the iNetwork Innovation Awards 2018. The Communications Team led on delivery of our second ACE Staff Awards which took place 
on 29th November which again was a great success. Work is continuing on campaigns; including in relation to childhood obesity, fostering 
recruitment, children’s safeguarding, adult social care and armed forces events. 

03/01/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18006.A Work with internal stakeholders to determine communication 
priorities for 2018/19 

30 June 2018   

 N18006.B Start implementation of new communications strategy, including 
refresh of related policies. 

30 June 2018   

 N18006.C Assist Council in establishing new partnership models (LCO) 31 December 2018   
 

 

  

 

N18007 Work in partnership to determine vision and priorities to offer 
strategic direction for the Borough and the Council 

 31 March 2019   

The work has paused whilst we consider the functions of the PSR Steering Group and Health and Wellbeing Board. There is a possibility to 
create a combined board. We need to think about how this would fit into any new governance structures. Leadership Team and Cabinet 
members have undertaken work with the Local Government Association (LGA) to consider future priorities. Thought is also being given to 
transformation models and how we create 21st century public servants. The current Corporate Plan runs out in 2019. Timescales have not yet 
been determined for development of a new plan as it will need to be informed by these key pieces of work. Indicative timescales suggest summer 
of 2019. 

03/01/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18007.A Establish a Strategic Board to drive partnership and cooperative 
agendas 

30 June 2018   

 N18007.B Review Corporate Plan 31 March 2019   
 

 

  

 

N18008 Increase number of homelessness preventions   31 March 2019   

 
118 preventions - this reflects an expected increase as the recent changes to how the council is directed to deliver and record homelessness activity has reached the 
third quarter. 
 

 

P
age 39



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2018-19  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  4  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 July 2018 
 

  

         

 Ref Name Due   

 N18008.A Work with colleagues across the AGMA region to build a combined 
response to the duties within the Homeless Reduction Act (HRA). 
Creation of a common database 

31 August 2018   

 N18008.B Work with existing 3rd sector partners to maximize preventions 
Partners include Petrus, Brentwood, Sanctuary Trust, Stepping 
Stones etc. 

31 March 2019   

 N18008.C Implementation of HRA requirements 31 March 2019   
 

 

  

 

N18009 Ensure the Council’s Housing Allocations Policy and Scheme 
meets statutory requirements and makes the maximises the use of 
housing stock in the borough 

 31 March 2019   

 

Soft market testing exercise completed. Specification for project drafted. Working with STAR to find the most appropriate route to procure required services 
 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18009.A Review current policy and scheme. 30 November 2019   

 N18009.B Design and develop fit for purpose policy and scheme. 30 June 2018   

 N18009.C Implement the scheme approved by members following the outcome 
of the review. 

31 July 2018   

 N18009.D Project manage implementation of the new scheme. 31 March 2019   

 N18009.E Review housing outcomes and amend policy if required. 31 January 2019   
 

 

  

 

N18010 Increase number of empty homes being brought back into use  31 March 2019   

 
The number of long-term empty properties continues to fall by small increments, the current total is 844. During this quarter the Empty Property team has intervened in 
20 cases where the property has come back into use (16 of these properties had been empty over 2 years), 1 property has been served with a Final Empty Dwelling 
Management Order and refurbishment work has commenced, 1 property has entered the leasing scheme and 8 have been referred. A further 6 leased properties are 
under refurbishment. The actions of the team have recouped £4,742 that was owed to the authority. 
 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18010.A Continue to work with owners of empty properties to promote tools to 
bring properties back into use 

31 October 2018   

 N18010.B Use enforcement powers, where appropriate, to bring empty 
properties back into use 

31 October 2018   

 N18010.C Work with property owners, estate agents and investors to prevent 
properties reaching 6 months empty 

31 March 2019   

 

 

  

 

P
age 40



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2018-19  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  5  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 July 2018 
 

  

         

N18011 Deliver successful CPO Programme  28 February 2019   

 
A total of ten reports seeking resolution to make a CPO have now been presented to Cabinet and approved. Negotiations with site owners continue in parallel and are 
progressing well. A decision will need to be taken in Q4 18/19 as to the timing of future Cabinet reports, in order to allow officers to progress the ten cases where 
Cabinet has given authorisation to proceed. 
 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18011.A Create a priority list of 10 properties and sites to be considered for 
CPO 

30 April 2018   

 N18011.B Make offers to purchase by negotiation 10 priority properties and 
sites 

30 June 2018   

 N18011.C Submit CPO reports to Cabinet for 10 priority properties and sites 30 November 2018   

 N18011.D Submit CPOs for 10 priority properties and sites to Secretary of State 28 February 2019   
 

 

  

 

N18012 Increase in the amount of waste being recycled to achieve an 
annual  50% recycling rate 

 31 March 2019   

 

Quarter 2 results from waste dataflow are still awaiting final sign off, however our raw data from Q3 shows year on year improvements in 
recycling rates for each of the 3 months of October (1.36%), November (0.15%) and December (3.04% to date). Continued door stepping 
campaigns to reduce contamination and increase food waste helped maintain recycling rates and the rebalancing of 11 collection rounds took up 
a significant amount of Recycling Officer’s time in November to maintain smooth operations. Christmas roadshows at all the main supermarkets 
are the current focus as we promote positive recycling behaviours for over the festive season. 
 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18012.A Deliver a number of food waste initiatives  31 March 2019   

 N18012.B Programme of publicity to further reduce contaminations 31 March 2019  

 N18012.C Implement a non-recyclable waste reduction strategy 31 March 2019   
 

 

  

 

N18013 Improve the cleanliness of our streets and open spaces and 
public realm 

 31 March 2019   

 

Proactive forward planning has helped achieve an efficient leaf collection this year enabling the streets / roads to be free of leaves prior to the 
festive break. Closer monitoring of the hard surface herbicide contractor has proved beneficial with greater herbicide coverage throughout the 
borough. Street cleaning equipment such as electric and petrol suckers are currently being trialled in hard to reach areas. APSE have developed 
LAMS (Land Audit Management System) a mobile App is now on line for more accurate recording of cleanliness standards We are currently 
collecting this information through our Enforcement team, we are in talks with a community group (REAG) to trial collecting this data as well The 
% of sites that were acceptable for October and November is 97.18% LAMS result shows we are top Quartile with a figure of 96.55% (Apr to 
Nov).The average on all returns is 88.17. 

 

P
age 41



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2018-19  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  6  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 July 2018 
 

  

         

 
 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18013.A Targeted campaigns programme by area 30 September 2018   

 N18013.B Increase Open space maintenance recycling 31 March 2019   

 N18013.C Targeted grot spot education and enforcement programme 31 March 2019   
 

 

  

 

N18014 Deliver J19 Link Road  31 March 2019   

An OJEU compliant procurement process has been agreed by all partners (RBC, TfGM, RDA, STAR procurement) and Cabinet approval to 
commence the procurement process was granted on 18 December 2018. The tender process will commence in January 2019 with the contract 
being awarded to the preferred bidder mid-August 2019. This will be dependent on securing planning approval, all development agreements with 
the private developer partner and full business case approval. Works are programmed to then commence on site in mid-late September 2019 
with a 2 year construction period. 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18014.A Engage preferred contractor in pre-construction activities 28 February 2019   

 N18014.B Construction commencement 31 March 2019   
 

 

  

 

N18015 Deliver highways capital programme and additional investment   31 March 2019   

 

Year 1 of the 2 year LTP capital programme has now been completed. Prep work for year 2 schemes has started The footway and resurfacing 
work associated with this programme is running well and has been fully programmed out. Year 2 of the gully replacement programme is 
approximately 50% completed. A number of high risk flood site schemes have been delivered on site and the remainder will be completed in 
2018/19 

 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18015.A Deliver flood resilience (£500k high risk flood sites, £300k gully 
replacement programme) 

31 March 2019   

 N18015.B Deliver carriageway improvement schemes and maintain level 3 
rating IFA (value £1,385k) 

31 March 2019   

 N18015.C Deliver footway improvement programme (value £143K) 31 March 2019   
 

 

  

 

 

N18016 Maximise housing offer opportunities presented by devolution   30 September 2018   

 

Ongoing discussions with CA regarding bringing sites forward for inclusion in the GM/Mayoral funding programme continue. Discussions have taken place on GMCA 
support for Community Led Housing intiatives, which will be followed up and progressed. 
 

 

P
age 42



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2018-19  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  7  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 July 2018 
 

  

         

 Ref Name Due   

 N18016.A Ensure devolved housing association investment programme monies 
are available in Rochdale 

30 September 2018   

 N18016.B Work with housing associations to agree the build programme and 
ensure that it meets local need and the council’s priorities 

30 September 2018   

 N18016.C Engage with developers receiving HCA grant monies to ensure they 
are aware of opportunities in Rochdale 

30 September 2018   

 

 

  

 

N18017 Increase Enforcement Activity  31 March 2019   

Headline enforcement activity is now at a consistently high level compared to both the same period last year and to previous calendar years The 
Unit continues to undertake all routine enquiries and investigations into a range of environmental offences including accumulations of waste on 
private land, highways issues, litter and dog fouling complaints, commercial waste compliance issues, abandoned vehicles, fly-posting and 
graffiti. Members of the Unit continue to undertake monthly Cemeteries, Gateways and LAMS inspections. The taskforce formed to deal with 
Unauthorised Encampments continue to provide 24/7 on-call cover to ensure that the injunction prohibiting unlawful traveller encampments 
across the Borough remains effective. . The taskforce’s work, led by Strategic Housing and supported by Legal Services, has resulted in a 
dramatic decrease in the number of unlawful traveller encampments during 2018 (21 in total, compared to 67 in 2017 (the first year that accurate 
figures were compiled), 39 in 2016 and 28 in 2015), the days the Borough has been subject to such unlawful encampments (10 days in total in 
2018 compared to 441 in 2017, 153 in 2016 and 129 in 2015), and the costs associated with those encampments (£342 in 2018 compared to 
£87,896 in 2017, £23, 136 in 2016 and £25, 419 in 2015). (All figures to Mid Dec 2018) 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 N18017.A Implementation of provisions for enforcement of the interim Traveller 
injunction preventing unauthorised encampments 

31 March 2019   

 N18017.B Prepare case for full injunction to prevent unauthorised 
encampments hearing at the High Court in London 

31 March 2019   

 N18017.C Enforcement of the interim injunction to prevent unauthorised 
traveller encampments 

31 March 2019   

 N18017.D Enforcement action taken under Rochdale Town Centre – PSPO’s 31 March 2019   

 N18017.E Increase enforcement activity for littering and dog fouling through 
engagement of a private contractor. 

31 December 2018   

 

 

  

 

    

    

 

P
age 43


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	8 Economy Directorate Plans 2018-19: Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Economy Directorate Plans 2018-19: Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 2 for Economy Directorate Plans 2018-19: Quarter 3 Performance Update

	9 Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2018-19: Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2018-19: Quarter 3 Performance Update


